AGENDA

BASEHOR CITY COUNCIL
May 5, 2008
6:00 p.m.
Basehor City Hall

WORK SESSION - 6:00 p.m.
1. Discussion regarding agenda items.

REGULAR MEETING - 7:00 p.m.
1. Roll Call by Mayor Chris Garcia and Pledge of Allegiance

2. Consent Agenda
(Consent Agenda Items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Council Member
requests an item be removed for discussion and separate action.)

a. Approve Minutes
1. April 14, 2008 Work Session
2. April 21, 2008 Regular Meeting & Work Session
b. Approve Treasurer’s Report & Vendor Payments
c. Approve investment recommendations
d. Approve calendar of events

3. Call to Public

Members of the public are welcome to use this time to comment about any matter
relating to City business that is listed on this Agenda. The comments that are discussed
under “Call to Public” may or may not be acted upon by the Council during this meeting.
There is a five-minute time limit. (Please wait to be recognized by the mayor then
proceed to the podium; state your name and address).

a. Citizen Comments Regarding Agenda Items

4. Scheduled Discussion Items
a. Update on the design of the Wastewater Treatment Facility expansion and a
public meeting to discuss alternatives as required for the Kansas Water Pollution
Control Revolving Loan Fund and K.A.R. 28-16-136.

5. Business
a. Issue a proclamation regarding Building Safety Week, May 5-12.
b. Police Week Proclamation May 15 Peace Officer’s Memorial Day
c¢. Consider petition for a benefit district to finance public improvements and
Development Plan, as requested by Affinity Development, for Basehor Town
Center.



d. Consider an agreement between the city of Basehor, Kansas, and Sewer District
No. 3 (Glenwood) of Leavenworth County, Kansas, providing for the treatment of
wastewater.

e. Consider financial support to jointly sponsor the Kansas Sampler Festival for
Leavenworth County in 2010 and 2011,

f.  Consider an Erosion and Sediment Control ordinance (deferred from April 21).

g. Consider a Substance Abuse Policy and Implementation of Employee Assistance
Program (EAP).

h. Consider city administrator contract changes in regards to vacation policy, sick
leave and severance pay. (deferred from April 21)

6. City Administrator Report
7. Mayor’s Report

8. Council Member Reports
9.

Executive Session - Personnel Issue
a. City Administrator Annual Evaluation and Contract Review
10. Adjournment

Basehor City Council reserves the right to amend the agenda following its publication in
the Basehor Sentinel newspaper. Citizens are encouraged to attend all public meetings.
Updates to the agenda may be reviewed at www.cityof. basehor.org




City of Basehor Work Session April 14, 2008
Page 1 of 6

Minutes

BASEHOR CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION
April 14, 2008
6:00 p.m.
Basehor City Hall

Official Presiding: Mayor Chris Garcia

Members Present: Pres. Terry Thomas, Iris Dysart, Keith Sifford, Jim Washington
Members Absent: Terry Hill

Staff Present: Carl Slaugh, Mary Mogle, Gene Myracle, Dustin Smith,
Lloyd Martley, Dave Lutgen

The work session was called to order by Mayor Garcia will all members present with the
exception of Councilmember Hill.

Mayor Garcia advised the public it is necessary to have four members present in order to
conduct business. In the event a council member left, the meeting would be adjourned.

1. Consideration of 15 0" Street Improvements.

Mr. Slaugh reported KDOT informed him $600,000 would be available on a non-
competitive basis from 24-40 Corridor funds. The City would also be entitled to submit
grant applications for other projects; however, they would be on a competitive basis.
Those amounts have not been disclosed at this time.

Council discussed options for 150" & 24-40 Hwy intersection. Mr. Slaugh explained it
was KDOT’s intent to re-align 150™ Street and what may be beneficial to the property
owners on the north was not beneficial to the property on the south of 24-40 Highway.

Ed McIntosh, Benchmark Development, addressed the Transportation Development
District (TDD)for Wolfcreek Junction. He explained the grocery store would collect a
special sales tax that would be used to pay for infrastructure and estimated the project
cost to be around $5,500,000. KDOT informed Mr. Mclntosh there might be funding
from Corridor funds to help with construction costs. He explained he was not asking the
City to provide funding other than to support KDOT funding.

President Thomas asked what happens if the City did not agree that Wolfcreek Parkway
was a major priority. Mr. Mclntosh stated he would move forward with his project; it
would just take longer to pay off the TDD loan.



City of Basehor Work Session April 14, 2008
Page 2 of 6

Councilmember Washington asked why the City would want to provide Corridor funds
when there was already TDD funding. He felt Corridor funds should be used for
projects where other types of funding were not available. Mr. McIntosh explained this
would allow money to be available for other projects through an eligible soft match
option.

Resident George Smith wanted to make sure Mr. McIntosh’s request was not going to
delay improvements to 15 0™ Street. Council assured Mr. Smith 150" Street would be
improved in the near future.

John Flower, 15515 Cedar Lane, reported this was an opportunity to have over $12
million in projects done through KDOT and TDD funding. By using these two types of
funding, it would allow the City to have additional funds for future projects.

Mr. Slaugh asked Mr. Steve Miles to speak regarding how the re-alignment of 150"
Street would affect his business located on the south side of 24-40 Highway. Mr. Miles
explained if 150™ Street was “straightened out” it would be necessary to move his
business, compensation for ground should be made, install box culvert, and bring a 30 ft.
bluff down to the north. He questioned if the homes west of his land would be
purchased. He also expressed his displeasure with the closing of the only access his
business had to enter onto 24/40 Highway. He explained he was not asking for a traffic
light, only a full intersection where his trucks could turn east or west. Mr. Miles
explained KDOT has agreed to a right-in/right-out on his property.

Council and Mr. Miles discussed future problems with closing access points, reverse
frontage roads, and future development. Councilmember Washington felt a traffic design
engineer should be hired to give an area traffic design that would give Council an idea of
cost and conceptual traffic flow.

President Thomas suggested putting verbiage in the Corridor plan that states once a
frontage road was constructed from 142" Street to 147™ Street, the access crossover
would be closed.

Mr. Slaugh asked if it would be beneficial to Mr. Miles if left turn lanes were secured
from KDOT. Mr. Hooper and Mr. Miles felt it would be an inconvenience for their
employees and customers. Mr. Slaugh suggested coming up with a short-term list for
this years Corridor funding and then work on a list for next year.

Mr. Slaugh said there was another issue with the right-in-right-out at 153" Street. KDOT
will be sending a formal letter denying the access. Mr. Mclntosh asked the City to
continue supporting the request and send another letter requesting the right-in/right-out
access.

John Flower noted there were several issues on the table this evening. He explained the
City gave up a fully signalized intersection at 147" in lieu of 150™ Street and wanted to
make sure the Council understood the consequences. He recommended giving KDOT



City of Basehor Work Session April 14,2008
Page 3 of 6

thirty days to respond to the developer’s request for access at 153" St. He did not feel
anything would stop the closing of 142" unless it became a safety issue. Mr. Flower
stated it would take $3-$5 million to realign the 150™ Street intersection.

President Thomas recommended the following Corridor priority list.
Craig Street north to Parallel — 1

Wolfereek Blvd reverse frontage — 2

155" to 24-40 north 800 ft. -3

158" to 24-40 - 4

150" & 24-40 intersection north - 5

150™ to north to Wolf Creek Blvd — 6

Reverse front 150 to 153™ south side - 7

150™ & 24-40 South - 8

Reverse frontage road from 155" to 158" Street - 9

Mr. Mclntosh asked if he needed to get the city administrator costs for improvements to
Wolfcreek Blvd reverse frontage road. Council agreed to use TDD money to help pay
for improvements to Wolfcreek Blvd.

Five minute break (7:07 p.m.)
2. Discussion regarding Basehor Town Center, Affinity Development

Jennifer Van Der Steen, legal counsel for Affinity Development, went over eleven key
points in forming a special benefit district.

President Thomas asked why Affinity Development requested three separate benefit
districts and questioned why people outside the proposed subdivision would be included
in the benefit districts.

Gary Anderson, Gilmore & Bell, bond counsel for the City, explained with respect to
Kansas Law, properties benefiting by the improvement must be included in the benefit
district. Mr. Anderson explained the properties on the west side of 155" Street are
benefiting and should be assessed. There has been discussion if the developer will pay
the assessment for those on the west side.

Councilmember Washington questioned the benefit district for 155" Street. He noted
one of the tracts of land back up to 155" Street and does not have an access onto 155
Street. Mr. Anderson noted the developer has agreed to pay assessments for those
properties not benefiting from the improvements. Developer Mike Duncan concurred
with Mr. Anderson.

Mayor Garcia asked Mr. Anderson if the City should ask for a letter of credit from the
developer. Mr. Anderson noted it was standard to look at some method to assure that the
developer has collateral to complete the project. He suggested the City develop a written
policy to let future developers know what would be expected if they wish to create a



City of Basehor Work Session April 14, 2008
Page 4 of 6

benefit district.  The mayor asked what the total annual City obligation would be. Mr.
Anderson noted it should be zero until the City builds the recreation center and other
municipal facilities.

President Thomas asked why the east part of the development was excluded from the
benefit district. Mr. Anderson explained Basehor Boulevard would be extended to the
end of the school district property; therefore, those properties east of the school would
not benefit from the improvements.

Max DaMetz (11490 Strangline Road), reported the east half of the property would be
liable for the cost of infrastructure when it developed. Councilmember Washington and
President Thomas felt those on the east side would benefit from 155™ improvements to
155" Street and Basehor Blvd. Mr. DaMetz noted the property owners east would pay
on a benefit district for improvements to 147" Street.

Pete Heaven, legal counsel for Affinity Development, explained an anticipated cost of
$70,000 would be borne by the City. Mr. DaMetz reminded Council the City was not
being asked to participate in the benefit districts until the City purchases land. He
explained the developer would be responsible for the assessments until the City purchases
land for municipal facilities. Mr. Heaven explained there was a long history in the State
of Kansas including taxing entities in benefit districts and would be reviewed by the
State.

President Thomas felt the entire area should be assessed. Gary Anderson explained all
the property would be included in the sanitary sewer benefit district since they would all
benefit from the improvement; however, the other two benefit districts would only
benefit certain properties.

John Bonee, 14123 Belrive Circle, felt the only person benefiting from the benefit district
would be the developer. He reminded Council the last three benefit districts ended up
costing the City. Mr. Bonee pointed out his subdivision, Pebble Brook, did not have an
access onto 155" Street and should not be assessed since they were not benefiting from
the improvement.

Councilmember Washington addressed Basehor Boulevard and 155™ Street benefit
district and asked why the senior housing had been excluded.

Mr. Anderson reported the rational was that senior housing did not need to come north to
gain access onto 15 5™ Street. Council pointed out other areas of the subdivision could
exit the subdivision through other access points and felt that area should be included in
the districts. President Thomas noted it appeared the assessments were concentrated on
the largest property owner; which would be the City of Basehor.

Councilmember Sifford asked Mr. Anderson to address Mr. Bonee’s concerns. Mr.
Anderson explained ultimately accommodations would be made for properties on the
west side of 155™ Street if they do not have access to 155" Street.  Mr. Anderson



City of Basehor Work Session April 14, 2008
Page 5 of 6

suggested adding a covenant that access would never be allowed to those properties not
included in the benefit district.

Lynne Sebree, 15516 Crestwood Dr., has supported Basehor Town Center as long as it
does not cost the taxpayers. According to the plan, he would be included in the benefit
district and did not feel he would benefit from the improvements. He felt he should have
been notified about the meeting this evening and would like to be notified regarding
future discussions.

Mr. Duncan stated he was going to pay for improvements to the west side of 15 5™ Street.
He explained with multi-phase developments, common elements such as the boulevard,
155" Street, and the sanitary sewer, are normally included in benefit districts. He
requested Council give him direction as to the area they want see included in the benefit
district. Mr. Duncan explained the proposed facilities could be privatized and he would
lease to other businesses such as the YMCA.

Mark Linville, Trustee for Fairmount Township, questioned the legality of assessing
township property. He did not feel the fire department would benefit from the
improvement. If they are going to be assessed they request consideration for budgeting
purposes.

Mr. Duncan explained the school wants to start construction July 1. He has agreed to
split the cost of Basehor Boulevard assuming there was no benefit district. He has
committed to the school that he would pay $370,000.

Roger Brandt 15525 Hollingsworth Rd, Fairmount Township Fire Dept., explained
volunteer work and expense went into improving the fire station site. He suggested
Affinity Development donate land to move 155" Street east so that properties on the west
side would not be effected. He reported not one property owner along 155" Street has
asked for the development and should not be assessed.

President Thomas asked if it would be necessary to purchase more fire equipment to
handle Town Center. Mr. Brandt reported the township would need to purchase
additional equipment in an effort to keep low fire ratings.

John Flower (15515 Cedar Lane) reported a traffic study required Affinity Development
to improve 155™ Street. By Affinity Developments own figures, tax payers would
indirectly pay over a third of the $377,000 cost and the City would not pay anything until
the City develops in the area. He explained the documents request that no public hearing
be held regarding the benefit districts and recommended against the request. Mr. Flower
explained Mr. Duncan noted if the City chose to not construct municipal facilities he
would build commercial facilities.

George Smith, 14923 Parallel, explained he was advocate for the Town Center and at
some point the City would need to build municipal facilities. He felt this area was the



City of Basehor Work Session April 14, 2008
Page 6 of 6

only location that should be considered “down town” and the identity of the City was
important.

Councilmember Washington stated he would support the benefit district on Basehor
Boulevard and the benefit district on 155" Street excluding the assessment to property
owners on the west side.

Council agreed the benefit districts should include the properties on the south side of the
development, just north of Rickle’s subdivision.

Mr. Anderson wanted to make sure there was a consensus that the developer was going to
take care of assessments for property owners on the west side.

President Thomas wanted an explanation why Basehor Boulevard would not be extended
to 147" Street. Mr. Anderson stated he would ask the engineers to provide a cost
estimate to extend Basehor Boulevard. He explained as bond counsel, he had an issue
extending the benefit district east since those properties would not immediately benefit.
Mayor Garcia asked Mr. Anderson if a letter of credit should be required. Mr. Anderson
stated he would meet with Piper Jaffray to go over the options.

Mr. Anderson explained there was no requirement for a public hearing; however, the City
could notify area property owners of the meeting.

3. 2009 Budget review — department requests

Due to time constraints, this topic was tabled.
Work Session adjourned at 8:45 p.m.

Submitted for Council approval with/without corrections or additions this 5" day of May,
2008.

Chris Garcia, Mayor

Attest:

Mary A. Mogle, CMC, City Clerk



















































































































































































































































































































































































































































